DVRPC ArcPAD Stormwater Outfall Collection Form Installation & Field Collection

Prepared by: Ian Kramer ESRI

February 2005

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	. 1
DVRPC FORM INSTALLATION	. 1
CONDUCTING OUTFALL COLLECTION	. 8
THE HELP TOOL	13
TRANSFERRING OUTFALLS BACK TO THE DESKTOP PC	15
ADDING YOUR OWN DATA	17
APPENDIX I	19
Setting Paths in ArcPad	19
APPENDIX II	21
Starting ArcPad Familiarizing yourself with ArcPad File Toolbar Browse Toolbar	21 <i>21</i>
APPENDIX III	23
MANUALLY ACTIVATING AND DEACTIVATING THE GPS UNIT	23
APPENDIX IV	26
INSTALLING ARCPAD 6.0.3 ArcPad 6.0.3 (PC Install) ArcPad 6.0.3 Application (Installation on the Trimble Unit) ArcPad 6.0 Font (Installation on the Trimble Unit) Entering your registration number INSTALL TRIMBLE GPSCORRECT CONFIGURE TRIMBLE GPSCORRECT WITH ARCPAD	26 31 34 34 35

Introduction

This document is intended to walk users through a step-by-step process for installation of the ArcPAD Stormwater Forms created for DVRPC and their partners. For those who do not have a license of ArcPAD, interested parties can download a eval copy of ArcPAD from ESRI's website at; <u>http://www.esri.com/software/arcgis/arcpad/download.html</u>

DVRPC Form Installation

1. On the DVRPC Download web page, click the "ArcPad Forms files" link. When prompted, click the Save button to download the "DVRPC_Forms.zip" file to your desktop machine.



2. On the DVRPC Download web page, click the "ArcPad Project and Preferences file" link. When prompted, click the Save button to download the "DVRPC_Project.zip" file to your desktop machine.

File Dov	vnload 🔀
Do you	want to open or save this file?
I.	Name: DVRPC_Project.zip Type: WinZip File, 2.93 KB From: 12.104.39.122
🗹 Alwa	Open Save Cancel 😡
0	While files from the Internet can be useful, some files can potentially harm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not open or save this file. <u>What's the risk?</u>

- 3. Create a folder called "DVRPC" on your desktop computer.
- 4. Open the "DVRPC_Forms.zip" file in WinZip.

WinZip - DVRPC_ File Actions Options		-					
New Open Fa	🧐 🍕	dd Extra		View	CheckOut	Wiza	3
New Open Fa	svonces A	Modified	sec	VIEW	Size	Ratio	
dvrpc.apa		12/1/200	04 5:30	PM	751	52%	
🕈 dvrpc.vbs		12/1/200)4 5:40	PM	2,764	63%	
💁 outfall.bmp		6/9/2004	11:21	PM	824	84%	
🛱 Outfall.apl		1/14/200)5 1:47	PM	35,52	90%	
🗐 Outfall.dbf		1/27/200	5 10:3	6	1,1868	69%	
🗟 Outfall.prj		1/14/200	5 4:04	PM	479	36%	
🗟 Outfall.shp		1/27/2005 10:36 100		100	57%		
🗟 Outfall.shp.xml		1/27/200)5 10:3	6	1,020	57%	
elected 0 files, 0 bytes		Total 45 files,	11.06	7KB			

5. Click on the Extract button.



- 6. In the Extract window, select the path to the "DVRPC" folder you created in step #3. The path will appear in the "Extract to:" drop down box located in the top-left of the Extract window. Make sure the "Use folder names" checkbox is selected.
- 7. Click the Extract button. The files will be transferred to the "DVRPC" folder.

Extract		×
Extract to:	Folders/drives: 🗟	Extract
C:\DVRPC		Cancel
C Selected files		Help
All files Files:		
	⊕ 😴 pub on 'blueridge' (Z:) ⊕ 🧐 My Network Places	
Overwrite existing files	LuzTechSpt	
Use folder names		New Folder

- Follow steps #4-7, using the "ArcPad_Project.zip" file.
 The contents of the "DVRPC" folder should have 4 folders (Applets, Collect, Data, and Help), an arcpadprefs.apx file, a DVRPC-IPAQ.apm file, and a DVRPC-Trimble.apm file.

🔼 Name 🔺	Size Type
	File Folder
Collect	File Folder
📄 🚞 Data	File Folder
🗀 Help	File Folder
ArcPadPrefs.apx	2 KB APX File
DVRPC-IPAQ.apm	4 KB ArcPad Map Document
🔹 DVRPC-Trimble.apm	4 KB ArcPad Map Document

10. Connect your handheld device to your desktop computer using ActiveSync.

🔮 Microsoft Active	R.		
File View Tools Hel	P	- 0	
Sync Stop Deta			
Pocket_PC			
Connected Synchronized			
Information Type	Status		
Information Type	Status Synchronized		

- 11. After you establish a connection to your handheld device, open the My Computer folder. On Windows XP, it is located under the Start button menu. On Windows 2000, it is located on your desktop.
- 12. Double-click on the Mobile Device drive.
- 13. A list of folders and files will appear. This is the folders and files on your handheld device. By default, it opens the contents of the "My Documents" folder on your handheld device. Double-click on the "My Pocket PC" folder.



The "My Pocket PC" folder contains the base level of files and folders on your handheld device (similar to the C:\ drive on a desktop PC). For the Trimble device, you will be

interested in the "Disk" and "My Documents" folder. The IPAQ will just deal with the "My Documents" folder, unless a storage card is present. The "Disk" folder represents a separate physical storage device inside your unit. This is where all shapefiles should be stored.

- My Pocket PC 100 File Edit View Favorites Tools Help a B Back . Folders Search -Address Go Name 🔺 Size Type Modified 🗟 Databases System Folder Disk File Folder My Documents File Folder Program Files File Folder Storage Card File Folder Temp File Folder 🚞 Windows File Folder CMMapG 4/1/2001 3:00:05 60 bytes File MManP 4/1/2001_3:00:05 56 hytes File 🛛 Mobile 11 object(s)
- 14. Double-click on the "Disk" folder.

15. Click on File...New Folder from the file menu. Name the folder "DVRPC".

Address 🛅 \Disk		🖌 🄁 Go
Name 🔺	Size Type	Mc
	File Folder	

- 16. Double-click on the "DVPRC" folder.
- Leaving this window open, click on the My Computer folder again to open a new window. Navigate to the "DVRPC" folder that you created on your desktop PC (step #3).
- 18. Select (one-click) the "Applets" folder.
- 19. Hold your <CTRL> key down and select the remaining three folders.

Address C:\DVRPC	💟 🄁 Go	
Name 🔺	Size Type [Da
applets 🛛	File Folder 2	/2
Collect	File Folder 2	/2
🚞 Data 🚽	File Folder 2	/2
🛅 Help	File Folder 2	/2
📼 ArcPadPrefs.apx	2 KB APX File 1	12
🐮 DVRPC-IPAQ.apm	4 KB ArcPad Map Document 1	12
🐮 DVRPC-Trimble.apm	4 KB ArcPad Map Document 1	12
	N	

- 20. Select Edit...Copy from the file menu.
- 21. Activate your Mobile Device window (the one we left opened).22. Click Edit...Paste. Note: Make sure the path reads "\Disk\DVRPC\" in the Address box.

🖼 DVRPC		Ň		
File Edit View	Favorites	Wools Help		1
🕝 Back 🔹 🌔) - 🇊	🔎 Search	Folders	»
Address 🛅 \Disk\E	VRPC			Go
Name 🔺	Size	Туре	Mo	dified
Applets		File Folder		
Collect		File Folder		
Data		File Folder		
Help		File Folder		
<	100 C		<u> </u>	Þ
4 object(s)	l.			0

23. During the file copy process you may receive a message notifying you that some files may need to be converted. Click OK.

File Conversion				
٩	Microsoft ActiveSync may need to convert files when synchronizing between your mobile device and this desktop computer.			
	Note: A converted file might not contain all information found in the original file.			
	OK Help			

- 24. Activate your DVRPC window on your desktop PC.
- 25. Select (one-click) the "ArcPadPrefs.apx".

26. Hold your <CTRL> key down and select the "DVRPC-Trimble.apm" file. Note: IPAQ users will want to select the "DVRPC-IPAQ.apm" file.

🗀 DVRPC				
File Edit View Favo	orites Tools	Help		
🌀 Back 👻 🕥 🔸	🏂 🔎 Se	arch 😥	Folders	•
Address 🗁 C:\DVRPC				🗟 🄁 📀
Name 🔺		Size	Туре	
C Applets			File Fold	er
Collect			File Fold	er
Data			File Fold	er
Help			File Fold	er
🚾 ArcPadPrefs.apx		2 KB	APX File	
DVRPC-IPAQ.apm		4 KB	ArcPad N	1ap Document
DVRPC-Trimble.apm		4 KB	ArcPad N	1ap Document
<				
2 objects selected	5.15 KB	😼 My	Computer	r 👔

- 27. Select Edit...Copy from the file menu.
- 28. Activate your Mobile Device window (the one we left opened).
- 29. Use the Back button to go up to directory levels where you see the "Disk" and "My Documents" folders.
- 30. Double-click on the "My Documents" folder.
- 31. Click Edit...Paste. Note: Make sure the path reads "\My Documents" in the Address box.



- 32. Launch ArcPAD
- 33. Your are now ready to collect outfalls.

NOTE: If you are using another type of device like the Compaq IPAQ, you will need to set the folder paths in ArcPad. Please refer to Appendix I.

Conducting Outfall Collection

- 1. Launch ArcPAD
- 2. Open the ArcPAD project by clicking on the top left 'folder' button. Tap on Open Map option.



3. Open the 'DVRPC-Trimble.apm' or 'DVRPC-IPAQ' .APM

Open ArcPad Map				
Open				
Folder: All Folders	▼ Cancel			
Type: ArcPad Map Do	cuments 👻			
Name 🔺	Folder			
🔉 ArcPad	poleinspec1			
🔊 ArcPad	poleinspection			
🔊 ArcPad	dataforarcpad1			
🔊 Damage_Assessm				
🔊 DVRPC-Trimble				
🗴 HLS_Arcpad				
# HLS_Arcpad-Trimble				
Outfall				
▲ Ⅲ	•			

4. You should see the county outlines for the state of NJ.



The application contains four layers. Some layers have scale dependencies assigned to them. Scale dependencies restrict the layer from being drawn at map scales outside the specified range in the ArcPad project file. In this map document, the layers were restricted from being drawn above a specified map scale to improve performance. The current map scale is shown in the bottom-right of the screen in the status bar. The map layers, map layer name (as seen in ArcPad), and the respective map scales are listed below:

- Outfalls Outfall No scale dependency set
- NJ Counties Counties No scale dependency set
- NJ HUC 14 Watersheds HUC-14 visible below 1:143816
- NJ Municipalities Municipalities visible below 1:897801

Lay	ers		OK
\odot	Title	() 🖉	1
	See GPS Tracklog		۲
	III Map Grid		je,
	Outfall		-
	I HUC-14		
5	Municipalities		t
			÷
			\times

5. For collecting outfalls, you will be using the tools on the DVRPC toolbar in ArcPad. There are two methods for collecting outfalls. The first uses the GPS device and the second uses manual placement.

a. Outfall by GPS

i. Tap on the Outfall by GPS button.



- ii. A message will appear notifying you that the GPS unit is activated and that you will need to wait for a signal.
- iii. Tap the OK button.



- iv. Tap the GPS button on the File toolbar. The Geodetic window will appear. This provides information on the GPS satellite connection information. NOTE: Please refer to the *Manually Activating and Deactivating the GPS Unit* section in Appendix III.
- v. Tap the GPS button again to close the Geodetic window.
- vi. A red crosshair will also appear when the GPS is active. The crosshair will show the current status of the GPS connection. The table below shows the two different crosshair statuses.

No Connection	Good Connection
0	•

- vii. Once you are receiving a healthy signal from the satellites, click on the Outfall by GPS button again.
- viii. A point will be created on the map, at your reported location.

b. Outfall by Hand

- i. Zoom to an area of interest.
- ii. Tap on drop down arrow next to the Outfall by GPS button and click the "Outfall by Hand" tool.



- iii. Tap the Outfall by Hand tool on the toolbar.
- iv. Tap on the estimated location on the screen.
- The Outfall collection form will appear. The Collection Info page will be displayed by default. Notice that the County, Municipality, and HUC 14 values are automatically populated based on the location of your outfall. Fill in the information for the Collection Info page.

Outfall OK ×
🗉 Collection Info 🔳 Pipe Info 🚺
Name:
Date: 2 /11/05 -
County: 34005 Municipality: 68610
HUC 14: 02040202050060
Outfall ID #:
Asset type: 🗸 🗸
Time since last rain:
Quantity of rain:
Help

7. Tap on the Pipe Info page. The Pipe Info page allows you to enter information about the pipe characteristics at the outfall. Please note that "Pipe height" and "Pipe width" are required values.

Outfall	ok ×
🗉 Pipe Info 📑	🛾 Outfall Info 🔳 🕨 🕨
Pipe height (in):	۵
Pipe width (in):	0
Pipe shape:	•
Pipe material:	•
Structural condition of pipe:	•
Pipe suspended:	~
Distance suspend (ft):	0
Help	

8. Tap on the Outfall Info page. This page allows you to enter information about the characteristics around the outfall.

Outfall	ок 🗙
🔳 Outfall Info	🔳 Flow Info 🔳 🖡 🕨
Outfall cover:	-
Near bridge:	•
Outfall protection:	•
Outlet erosion:	-
Erosion source:	
Headwall condition:	•
Picture IDs:	
Comments:	*

9. Tap on the Flow Info page. This page allows you to enter information about the characteristics of the flow from the outfall.

Outfall	Ж	×
🔳 Outfall Info 🖽 Flow Info 🟢	•	►
Discharge area:	•	
Pipe flow:	•	
Flow depth (in): 0		
Flow odor:	⊐(Ż
Flow appearance:	•]
Floatables: 🔿 No 🔿 Yes		
Help		

10. When you are down entering information, tap the OK button in the top-right corner of the form. The new outfall feature will appear on the map symbolized as an orange triangle. You can now go onto the new outfall location.



11. If you used the Outfall by GPS tool, you can deactivate the GPS device by clicking on the drop down arrow next to the GPS button and tapping the "GPS Active" tool option.



The Help Tool

The DVRPC toolbar contains a tool that directs you to a help document. This document contains detailed information on each of the outfall pages and pictures (i.e. examples of erosion).

12. On the DVRPC toolbar in ArcPad, click on the Help tool.

13. An Internet Explorer window will open on the handheld device. This page contains links to the four sections of the help document. Simply click on the link that represents the topic you are interested in.

🎥 Internet Explorer 🛛 🐳 📢 10:49 😵	9
file://\Disk\DVRPC\Help\Index.htm 👻 🌈	
GPS Field Collection Guidance Notes	
<u>Collection Information</u> <u>Pipe Information</u> <u>Outfall Information</u> <u>Flow Information</u>	
View Tools 🌾 🔁 🚰 👷 🖉	•

14. The link will take you to a more detailed discussion on that topic. To close the help, click on the "X" button on the top-right corner of the window.

🎥 Internet Explorer 💠 📢 10:50 👔	3
file://\Disk\DVRPC\Help\pipeinfo.ht 👻 🌾	٠
Pipe Information	▲
 <u>Pipe height</u>: This is the pipe size in inches from top to bottom. <u>Pipe width</u>: This is the pipe size is inches from left to right. <u>Pipe shape</u>: This is the shape of the pipe. Based on what you see and the measurements from the previous two fields choose a shape from the list. <u>Pipe material</u>: This is what the pipe is made of. Choose from the list. <u>Structural condition</u>: This is how the pipe looks. Choose from the list. 	=
Good = it needs no work Fair = it is starting to crack or	-
View Tools 💠 🔁 🚰 🔶 🖉 🖉	•

Apart from the DVRPC toolbar, you can also access the Help documents on each page of the Outfall collection form. A "Help" button is located at the bottom-left corner of each page.

Outfall OK 🗙
🗐 Collection Info 📑 Pipe Info 🚺
Name:
Date: 2 /11/05 -
County: 34035 Municipality: 24900
HUC 14: 02030105110030
Outfall ID #:
Asset type: 🗸 🗸
Time since last
Quantity of rain:
Help

Transferring Outfalls back to the Desktop PC

1. Connect your handheld device to your desktop PC using ActiveSync.

Microsoft ActiveSync		ke	
File View Tools Hel	P	- 0	
Sync Stop Deta			
Pocket_PC			
Connected Synchronized			
Information Type	Status		
Calendar	Synchronized		
Contacts	Synchronized		

- 2. After you establish a connection to your handheld device, open the My Computer folder. On Windows XP, it is located under the Start button menu. On Windows 2000, it is located on your desktop.
- 3. Double-click on the Mobile Device drive.

4. A list of folders and files will appear. This is the folders and files on your handheld device. By default, it opens the contents of the "My Documents" folder on your handheld device. Double-click on the "My Pocket PC" folder.

O Mobile Device		
File Edit View Favorites	Tools Help	
🌀 Back 🔹 🕥 🔹 🏂	🔎 Search 🔀 Folders	· · ·
Address 0 Mobile Device		🔽 🎅 Go 🖟
Name 🔺	Size Type	Modified
My Pocket PC Business	System Folder File Folder	
Personal	File Folder	
C Templates	File Folder	
<	1	
4 object(s)		🚺 Mobile 🔡

- 5. Double-click on the "Disk" folder.
- 6. Double-click on the "DVRPC" folder.
- 7. Double-click on the "Collect" folder. This folder contains the outfall shapefile and ArcPad form files.

File Edit View	Favorites	Tools Help	
G Back 🔹 🤅) · 🗊	🔎 Search	**
Address 🛅 \Disk\D	VRPC\Collect		Go
Name 🔺	Size	Туре	Modil
🖻 Outfall.apl	34.6KB	APL File	1/26/
🗐 Outfall.dbf	2,53KB	DBF File	2/11/
🔊 Outfall.prj	479 bytes	PRJ File	2/11/
🔊 Outfall.shp	156 bytes	SHP File	2/11/
🔮 Outfall.shp.xml	1.27KB		2/11/
🔊 Outfall.shx	116 bytes	SHX File	2/11/
🕈 Outfall.vbs	14.8KB	VBScript Script File	1/26/
<[12000		
7 object(s)			

- 15. Select (one-click) the "Outfall.dbf".
- 16. Hold your <CTRL> key down and select the "Outfall.prj", "Outfall.shp", "Outfall.shp.xml", and "Outfall.shx" files.
- 17. Select Edit...Copy from the file menu.
- 18. Click on the My Computer folder again to open a new window.
- 19. Navigate to a location on your desktop PC where you would like to place your Outfall shapefile.
- 20. Click Edit...Paste.
- 21. You can now open and view that shapefile in ArcMap.

Adding Your Own Data

You can add your own data into the ArcPad project file and take out into the field. For the default DVRPC files, the project is in the New Jersey State Plane North American Datum 1983 coordinate system. All layers will need to be in the same coordinate system for them to display correctly.

 Using the file copy skills that were outlined in the *DVRPC Form Installation* section of this manual, copy the new shapefile(s) to the \Disk\DVRPC\Data folder on your handheld device. NOTE: I am putting my background shapefiles in the Data folder. They can go anywhere on the handheld device.

File Edit View	Favorites Tools	Help		<u>_</u>
🌀 Back 🔹 🕥	- 🏂 🔎	Search 😥	Folders	·
Address 🔂 C:\DVRP	C\MyData			🔁 Go
Name 🔺		Size	Туре	
🔟 inlets.shx		4 KB	SHX File	
🗟 inlets.dbf		334 KB	DBF File	
🗟 inlets.prj		1 KB	PRJ File	
💼 inlets.sbn		5 KB	SBN File	
🖬 inlets.sbx		1 KB	SBX File	
inlets.shp		12 KB	SHP File	
	R			
C]			3	1
objects	353 KB	😒 My	Computer	

- 2. Open the DVRPC ArcPad project file on your handheld device.
- 3. Click on the Add Layer tool.

- 4. In the Add Layers window, click the "+" symbol next to the Data folder.
- 5. Tap the checkbox next to the layer you would like to add to the ArcPad project. A red checkmark will appear in the checkbox.



- 6. Click the OK button.
- 7. Your layer will now appear in your project.



Appendix I

Setting Paths in ArcPad

It may sometimes be necessary to set data, applet, and system paths in ArcPad.

- 1. On the taskbar, tap the Start Button and then select ArcPad 6.0.3.
- 2. In ArcPad, tap the Options button. The Options dialog appears.



3. Click the Browse button to the right of the Default Maps & Data Path text box.



- 4. The Directory Browser window will appear. Tap on the "+" next to the Disk folder.
- 5. Tap the DVRPC folder to select it. NOTE: This will be the folder where you copied the four folders to on your handheld.
- 6. Tap OK.

Directory Browser		×
🖃 💱 My Computer		
💱 ConnMgr		
🚊 🖓 🔋 Disk		_
庄 🛞 CCD		
主 💱 Damage Assessment		
💮 💱 Applets		
Collect		L.N
▲ Ш		h

- 7. The path of the folder will be populated in the Default Maps & Data Path text box. Click the Browse button to the right of the Applets Files Path text box.
- 8. The Directory Browser window will appear. Tap on the "+" next to the Disk folder.
- 9. Tap on the Applets folder to select it. NOTE: This will be the Applets folder which is located in the folder where you copied the four folders to on your handheld.
- 10. Tap OK.



11. Tap the OK button on the ArcPad Options title bar.

ArcPad Options OK	(×
🛕 Fonts 🎬 Paths 🎆 ArcIMS Default Maps & Data Path	•	►
\Disk\DVRPC		
System Files Path		
\Disk\ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3\System		
Applets File Path		
\Disk\DVRPC\Applets		

- 12. Click on black down arrow next to the File button.
- 13. Tap the Exit option from the drop down menu.

The next time ArcPad is open, it will use the paths that were just set in the steps above.

Appendix II

Starting ArcPad

The first thing you will need to do to start collecting data is to turn on your handheld device. Press the Power button located at the bottom-center of your handheld unit. Next, start ArcPad by clicking the Start button found in the upper-left corner of the screen, and select the ArcPad 6.0.3 option. You should see the ArcPad logo appear followed by the ArcPad interface screen. If you have not registered your copy of ArcPad yet, a dialog box will appear and ask for your registration number. This number can be found in your ArcPad software box. This box will continue to appear until you enter your registration number.

Familiarizing yourself with ArcPad

This section will briefly cover the functions of each button located in the File and Browse toolbars in ArcPad. For a more detailed description of the File and Browse toolbar buttons' functions, please refer to the <u>Using ArcPad</u> book, which comes with your ArcPad software.

File Toolbar

	📗 😂 - 🔜 🔸 - 🥩 🐁 - 🛠 - 🔯 -	
'≊ -	File - This button allows you to open an ArcPad project file. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to create, open, or save a project file (You can create a project file to open ArcPad to the same map view). It also allows you to exit ArcPad.	
	Save - This button allows you to save your project file. It will save it to the exact view you see at the time.	
	Add Layer - This button allows you to add a layer into your project. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to connect or navigate to other sites – you probably will not need to use this last feature.	
Ø	Layers - This button allows you to display and select layers for editing so you can fill out the mosquito forms.	
*⊕ -	GPS - This button allows you to startup the GPS and toggles the Geodetic DMS window. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to enable/disable the GPS unit.	
2-	Options - This button allows you to configure ArcPad options. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to turn on/off the toolbars.	
😰 🚽	Help - This button allows you to view help files in ArcPad.	

Browse Toolbar

] 🗨 - 🥥 - 🖛 - 🚯 🔄 👔	
€.	Zoom In - This button allows you to zoom in on the map using the pen. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to zoom in, zoom out, and pan on the map using the pen.	
0 -	Full Extent - This button allows you to zoom out to the full extent of all the map layers. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to do a fixed zoom in, fixed zoom out, zoom to selected feature, zoom to full extent, and zoom to a specific layer.	
← -	Back to Previous Extent - This button allows you to return to the previous extent of the map. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to return to a previous map extent, go to the next map extent, set map scale, and create/manage bookmarks.	
0.	Identify - This button allows you to identify features on the map. The black arrow will display a dropdown box that allows you to identify features, do three types of measurements, set hyperlinks and select a feature on the map.	
#	Find - This button allows you to search the attribute data on a specified layer.	
Ø	Clear Selected - This button allows you to clear all selected features on the map.	
	Refresh - This button allows you to refresh the map screen.	

Appendix III

Manually Activating and Deactivating the GPS Unit

During regular collection, you do not need to manually activate the GPS Unit. However, it is important to be familiar with how the GPS Unit and ArcPad interact, so it is worth mentioning. The key features will be discussed below. For more information on GPS functionality, please consult your ArcPad 6.0.3 manual.

There are two ways to manually activate the GPS unit. The first is a shortcut that will activate the GPS unit and display the Geodetic DMS (GPS status window) window all at once.

- 1. Tap on the GPS icon located on the File toolbar.
- 2. A dialog box should appear asking if the GPS unit should be activated. Tap Yes.



3. A crosshair will appear on the map and the Geodetic DMS window will appear on the screen. The Geodetic DMS window displays the connectivity status and information for your GPS unit. In the left graphic below, the GPS unit has not yet found the necessary satellites to provide a location. The numbers represent the different satellites that the GPS can communicate with. If the number has a red background, it means that the connection is not "healthy". If it has a blue background, it means that the connection is "healthy" and that the GPS unit can use that satellite to acquire a location. Typically, you need 3-4 satellites to get a good location. When this occurs, the background for those satellites will change to black and the location information will be displayed. The latitude and longitude are displayed in the top of the Geodetic DMS window.



4. You may close this window at any time, by tapping the "X" button in the top right corner.

The second method involves using the GPS icon's dropdown arrow to display the dropdown menu located to the right of the icon.

 In the File toolbar, tap the dropdown arrow to the right of the GPS icon. Four options will appear in the dropdown box, but for this program, there is only need to use three of them. The GPS Position Window option opens the Geodetic DMS window. The GPS Active option opens the connection between ArcPad and the GPS unit. The GPS debug option helps to determine if there are any problems with the communication between ArcPad and the GPS unit. Each option acts as a toggle switch. Tap on it once to turn it on and again to turn it off.

* ·	
🗞 GPS Position Window	
GPS Active	
😽 GPS Tracklog	
R GPS Debug	

2. Tap the GPS Active option. ArcPad will try to connect to the GPS unit. If it is successful, a crosshair will appear in your location. If ArcPad is unsuccessful, you will be alerted that ArcPad could not establish a connection.

Error Acti	ivating GPS. X
	The GPS cannot be activated.Please check cables And configuration options And try again.
	ок

- 3. If a connection could not be established, then you will need to use the GPS Debug option. With the GPS Active option still turned on, tap the GPS icon dropdown box, then the GPS Debug option.
- 4. If the connection between the two devices is working, you should get the black screen with lots of scrolling green text (shown below). If the connection is not working, then the screen will just be black. If this is the case, please consult the Installation Guide to be sure that the devices are set up properly.



- 5. When you are done testing the connection, turn off the GPS debug by tapping the GPS dropdown box, and then tap the GPS Debug option again.
- 6. To deactivate the GPS connection, tap the GPS dropdown box and tap GPS Active. The crosshair will then disappear.

Appendix IV

Installing ArcPad 6.0.3

ArcPad 6.0.3 (PC Install)

- 1. Go to http://www.esri.com/software/arcgis/arcpad/download.html and download an evaluation copy of ArcPad 6 (arcpad6_setup.exe) to your computer. Please note this location.
- 2. Close all applications on your desktop computer.
- 3. Navigate to the location of the ArcPad 6.0.3 Installation program and double-click on setup.exe.
- 4. Read the ArcPad 6.0.3 License Agreement. If you agree, select the "I Accept" radio button and click the Accept button.



5. At the Welcome screen, click Next.



6. At the Read Me File screen, click Next.



7. Select the location where ArcPad 6 is to be installed. It is recommended that you use the default location, unless otherwise directed by your computer systems personnel. Click Next.

월 Choose Destination L	ocation 🔀
ArcPad	Setup will install ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3 in the following folder. To install into a different folder, click Browse, and select another folder. You can choose not to install ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3 by clicking Cancel to exit Setup.
6.0.3	Destination Folder C:\Program Files\ArcPad Browse
	< <u>B</u> ack (<u>N</u> ext > Cancel

- 8. At the Select Components screen, you will need to make some choices depending on the software installed on your system.
 - a. If your machine's operating system is Windows 95, Windows 98, or Windows ME, then check the ArcPad for Windows 9x Technology option and leave the ArcPad for Windows NT Technology option unchecked. If your operating system is NT, 2000, or XP, then choose the ArcPad for Windows NT Technology and leave the ArcPad for Windows 9x Technology option unchecked.
 - b. Select the ArcPad Font option.
 - c. If you have ArcView 3.x installed, you can check this option.
 - d. If you have ArcGIS 8.x installed, you can check this option.
 - e. Check the ArcPad Sample Data option.
 - f. Check the Coordinate System PRJ Files option.
 - g. Check the ArcPad for Windows CE option.
 - h. Check the ArcPad Font for Windows CE option.
 - i. Check the ArcPad Sample Data for Windows CE option.
 - j. Check the VBScript Runtime Library for Windows CE option.
 - k. Click Next.

🛃 Select Components		×
đ	In the options list below, select the checkboxes for the would like to have installed. The disk space field requirements of the options you have se	elds reflect the
200	ArcPad for Windows 9x Technology (95,98,ME)	3729 k 🔺
	ArcPad for Windows NT Technology (NT4,2000,	XP) 3745 k
	ArcPad Font	28 k
	ArcPad Tools for ArcView 3.x	405 k
	ArcPad Tools for ArcGIS 8	592 k
	ArcPad Sample Data	5158 k
	Coordinate System PRJ Files	579 k 💻
	ArcPad for Windows CE	11238 k
	ArcPad Font for Windows CE	30 k 📃
6.0.3	ArcPad Sample Data for Windows CE	5082 k 💻
0.0.0	Disk Space Required:	35265 k
	Disk Space Remaining:	5823984 k
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next</u> >	Cancel

9. At the Select Program Manager Group screen, click Next.

월 Select Program Mana	ger Group	X
a	Enter the name of the Program Manager group to add ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3 icons to:	
E.	ArcGIS\ArcPad	-
ArcPad [®] 6.0.3	Accessories Administrative Tools ArcGIS Java 2 Runtime Environment Java Web Start New Atlanta Oracle - OraHome92 Oracle Installation Products Startup WinZip	
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next</u> > Cancel	

10. At the Start Installation screen, click Next. ArcPad 6 will start copying the files to your system.



11. The program files will start copying to your desktop computer.

Installing		×
ArcPad ^T 6.0.3	Current File Copying file: C:\\ArcPad\CABs\ArcPad_CHT.MIPS.CAB	
	< Back Next >	

12. At the Installation Complete screen, Click Finish.

월 Installation Complete	×
	ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3 has been successfully installed. Press the Finish button to exit this installation.
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>Finish ></u> Cancel

13. ArcPad 6.0 is now installed on your PC.

ArcPad 6.0.3 Application (Installation on the Trimble Unit)

- 1. Start an ActiveSync connection between your desktop PC and Windows CE computer. You can connect with or without a partnership.
- 2. On your desktop PC, click Start > Programs > ArcGIS > ArcPad > Install ArcPad 6.0.3.
- 3. On your desktop PC, the Add/Remove Program window will appear. An Installing Applications dialog box will appear, click No to install ArcPad to its default directory.

Add/Remove Programs			
Select a program's check box if you want to install it on your mobile device, or clear the check box if you want to remove the program from your device.			
Note: If a program that you installed is not listed, the program was not designed to be used on your mobile device.			
Installing Applications	×		
Install "ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3" using the default application install directory?			
Yes No Cancel			
Space required for selected programs:			
Space available on device: Install program into the default installation folder			
Remove from both locations To remove the selected program from both your device and this computer, click Remove.			
OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp			

4. A Select Destination Media window will appear. Select "Disk" from the Save In dropdown box.

Select Destination Media				
Save In: Disk	•			
Space required: Space available:	2299.7 K ≺una∛ailable>			
ОК	Cancel			

5. A new window will appear on your desktop PC. This window shows the status of the file transfer between your desktop PC and your handheld unit.

Installing Applications
Installing ESRI ArcPad 6.0.3
Cancel

- 6. The Application Downloading Complete screen will appear. You will see a window with a status bar appear on your handheld unit. The ArcPad files are being copied to your handheld unit. 7. Click the OK button on the Application Downloading Complete window, on your
- desktop PC.

Application Downloading Complete
Please check your mobile device screen to see if additional steps are necessary to complete this installation.
ОК

ArcPad 6.0 Font (Installation on the Trimble Unit)

- 1. On your desktop PC, click Start > Programs > ArcGIS > ArcPad > Install ArcPad Font for Windows CE.
- 2. On your desktop PC, the Add/Remove Program window will appear. An Installing Applications dialog box will appear, click Yes to install the ESRI ArcPad Font.

Installing Applications	N		×
Install "ESRI ArcPad Font" (w using the defaul	t application insta	Il directory?
Yes	No	Cancel	

- 3. The Application Downloading Complete screen will appear. You may see a window with a status bar appear on your handheld unit (Note: This process may happen fast and you may not see the window). The ArcPad font is being copied to your handheld unit.
- 4. Click the OK button on the Application Downloading Complete window, on your desktop PC.

Application Downloading Comp	ete 🔀
Please check your mobile device scree	n to see if additional steps are necessary to complete this installation.
	ОК
	\v

Entering your registration number

Entering a valid ArcPad registration number disables the evaluation mode time-out.

To enter your registration number:

- 1. On your handheld unit, tap on the Start button located in the upper-left corner of the screen. A drop-down menu will appear, tap on ArcPad 6.0.3.
- 2. Type your registration number in the Registration dialog box and tap OK.

ArcPad Registration 🛛 🛛 🔀				
Correct entry of your registration number is required to activate ArcPad, otherwise evaluation mode will be activated.				
Name Employee				
Organization ESRI				
Registration Number				
OK Cancel				

Install Trimble GPSCorrect

ArcPad 6.0.3 must be installed before installing GPSCorrect. For detailed information on Trimble GPSCorrect and ArcPad, please see the Trimble document at: <u>http://trl.trimble.com/docushare/dsweb/Get/Document-28053/GPScorrectGSG.pdf</u>

- 1. Start an ActiveSync connection between your desktop PC and Trimble handheld device. You can connect with or without a partnership.
- 2. If ArcPad 6.0.3 is open on the Trimble device, close the application.
- Insert the GPSCorrect CD-ROM in the CD drive of your desktop computer. The main setup screen appears. If this screen does not appear, select setup.exe from your CD drive folder.
- 4. Select Install GPSCorrect.

GPScorrect [™]	1.00		
Install GPScorrect Register Read Release Notes Read Getting Started Guide			
* 2002, Trimble Navigation Limited. All rights reserved. This progr copyright laws as described in Help About.	em is protected by US and interr	national	Tri

5. Select Install to a Windows CE device. The GPSCorrect installation wizard appears.



6. Follow the instructions on the screen to install the GPSCorrect extension. You will need to enter your GPSCorrect serial number and authorization key (displayed on the CD case).

Welcome	×		
GPScorrect™	Welcome to the GPScorrect Setup program. This program will install GPScorrect on your Windows CE device.		
	For optimal installation performance it is recommended that your Windows CE device is connected to the desktop computer using the fastest settings. Please set the communication settings of the Windows CE device to a high speed.		
	It is strongly recommended that you exit all Windows programs before running this Setup program.		
Trimble.	Click Cancel to quit Setup and then close any programs you have running. Click Next to continue with the Setup program.		
	< <u>B</u> ack. <u>Next ></u> Cancel		

- 7. When the message Install "GPSCorrect" using the default application install directory? appears. Click No to install the software on the Disk storage location. The Select Destination Media dialog appears.
- 8. From the Save In list, select Disk, and then click OK to proceed with the installation.

Select Destination Media 🛛 🗙			
<u>S</u> ave In:	Disk		•
Space required: Space available:		6,329.5 K <unavailable></unavailable>	
Oł	<	Cancel	

9. The setup program will begin copying files to the Trimble device. A notification window will appear when the installation is complete.

Configure Trimble GPSCorrect with ArcPad

The GPS unit will need to be configured to work with ArcPad 6.0.3.

- 1. On the taskbar, tap the Start Button and then select ArcPad 6.0.3.
- 2. In ArcPad, tap the Options button. The Options dialog appears.



- 3. Select the Protocol tab.
- 4. From the Protocol dropdown box, select "Trimble GPSCorrect".
- 5. Check the Automatically Activate check box.



- 6. Select the GPS tab.
- In the Port field, select the port that your GPS receiver is connected on (usually COM 3).
- 8. Táp OK.

